








From: Roger Blake <rblake@cifstate.org> 
Date: Thu, 20 Nov 2014 11:20:36 -0800 
To: Microsoft Office User <mgrant@spjusd.org> 
Cc: <jchin@cif.org>, <rblake@cifstate.org> 
Subject: RE: Student Eligibility Issue 
 

Dr. Grant, 
  
Thank you for your email and inquiry of November 19, 2014 regarding the athletic eligibility of a Sierra-
Plumas Joint Unified School District student.  As you may be aware, all CIF Bylaws, rules and regulations 
are enacted by a voting process that starts at the local high school and league levels that works all the 
way through all 1,500+ high schools that participate in CIF sports.  Bottom line, our schools establish the 
CIF rules and the guidelines that we must follow, including the ten CIF Sections.   
  
Our schools through this process established the definitions for a hardship and they also created the Sit 
Out Period (SOP) under which a student can, under most circumstances, transfer schools for the first 
time and still gain varsity eligibility as in rare cases, the family choice for a school doesn’t always work 
out the first time.  Our member schools have put in place much stricter rules regarding multiple school 
transfers.   
  
You know through your experiences as a superintendent that every situation has varying factors and 
unique situations.  However, our state wide rules and regulations established by our governance process 
(same as Board Policies and A.R.) set strict guidelines as to appeals and any actions that a section 
commissioner or the state office can take.   
  
Unfortunately in the case you have describe with the limited information it appears to me that this 
student falls under the multiple transfer provisions and has limited eligibility in the sports in which he 
participated the past 12 months with no waiver or appeal process available.  
  
I know this is not the information you were hoping to receive, but just as our school boards set policy for 
us as educational leaders, my 1,554 member schools (pretty large school board) set policies for the C.I.F. 
  
Good luck and best wishes for a successful school year.  
  
Roger L. Blake 
Executive Director 
California Interscholastic Federation 
4658 Duckhorn Drive 
Sacramento, CA  95834 
Phone 916-239-4477 
Fax 916-239-4478 
  
This email may contain material that is confidential work product and/or privileged, and is for the sole use of the 
intended recipient. Any review, reliance or distribution by others or forwarding without express permission is strictly 
prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, do not read it. Please immediately reply to the sender that you 
have received this communication in error and delete all copies. This communication constitutes an electronic 
communication within the meaning of the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. § 2510, et seq., and its 
disclosure is strictly limited to the recipient intended by the sender of this message. Thank you. 
  

mailto:rblake@cifstate.org
mailto:mgrant@spjusd.org
mailto:jchin@cif.org
mailto:rblake@cifstate.org


From: Merrill Grant [mailto:mgrant@spjusd.org]  

Sent: Wednesday, November 19, 2014 1:22 PM 
To: rblake@cifstate.org 

Cc: jchin@cif.org 
Subject: Student Eligibility Issue 
  
Director Blake, 
  
My name is Merrill Grant, superintendent of Sierra County Office of Education and the Sierra-Plumas joint 
Unified School District of the North Section. 
  
I am interested in the appeal/waiver process for a student-athlete in our district who has done his "one-time" 
transfer out of one high school to another, then back to the original high school. 
  
The student attended Downieville High School as a freshman and sophomore (where football is not offered), 
transferred to Loyalton High as a junior and played football this season. He has transferred back to 
Downieville HS and is fully aware that he may not play football at Loyalton as a senior next year as per state 
CIF bylaw. 
  
In our very unique situation, we are small and rural and cannot field a football team in Downieville, yet 
Loyalton HS in the same district plays "eight man" and would welcome extra players. 
  
I understand the rules and have spoken to Liz in the North Section; is there an avenue to pursue a waiver or 
appeal this state bylaw? I would like to address it soon before we get too deep in the spring semester. 
  
Thank you for your consideration, 
  
Dr. Merrill M. Grant 
(530) 771-7926 

 

mailto:mgrant@spjusd.org
mailto:rblake@cifstate.org
mailto:jchin@cif.org








Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 
  THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Wednesday, November 12, 2014 
5:00 PM CLOSED SESSION 

 
Downieville School, 130 School Street, Downieville, California 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER  
 
President Mike Moore called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 
B.  ROLL CALL  
 

PRESENT: Mr.  Mike Moore, President 
 Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Vice President 

 Ms.  Sharon Dryden, Clerk 
 Ms.  Patty Hall, Member – arrived at 5:05 pm 
 Mr.  Allen Wright, Member 

 
ABSENT:   None 
  
VACANT:  None 

 
C.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 DRISCOLL/WRIGHT  
  5/0 
 
D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION  
 

At this time, the meeting opened for any public comments regarding the Closed Session 
items. 
 

E. CLOSED SESSION 
 5:01 DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 

The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant and Rose Asquith, Business 
Manager will move into Closed Session to discuss the following items: 
 
1. Government Code §54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators  

Agency Negotiator for the Board:  Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
    Unrepresented Employees:  Sierra Plumas Teachers’ Association 
 

2. Government Code §54956.8, Conference with Real Property Negotiator, Review of 
Counter Offer for Loyalton Middle School, 605 School Street, Loyalton CA 
  Real Property Negotiator for the District:  Dr. Merrill M. Grant 

 
F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 5:55 pm 
 DRISCOLL/HALL 
 5/0 
  
 
 DRYDEN motioned to adjourn for break to Sierra County Board of Education and to thereafter 

reconvene/WRIGHT seconded. 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District  
Minutes of the School District Governing Board 
Regular Meeting  
November 12, 2014 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

2 

 DRYDEN/WRIGHT 
 
 RECONVENE AT 6:45 pm. 

 
REPORT OUT – MOORE reported that the board held a general discussion regarding 
labor negotiation scheduling for next year and will meet with district negotiations team on 
November 20, 2014.  MOORE and WRIGHT are currently on the negotiating team as 
Board representatives. 
MOORE reported that the board discussed the sale of the real property located at 605 
School Street, Loyalton, CA, APN #017-082-004 
That item is on the board agenda (Item 1415-080) and will be voted on publicly at this 
meeting..  

 
 G.  INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
a. A Chromebook Use Agreement has been drafted. 
b. Administration and Dr. Grant have been performing classroom observations and 

evaluations. 
c. Negotiations are proceeding for the nex(Certificated) t fiscal year. 
d. Sierra County Child Protection Stakeholder Meeting – Dr. Grant joined local entitled to 

discuss the general health and welfare of kids in Sierra County, identified resources 
available. 

e. A visit from Superintendent Tom Torlakson will hopefully occur on December 3, 2014. 
 

2. BUSINESS REPORT 
 

a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 7/1/14 to 9/30/14  
b. Second Month Enrollments for the 2014-2015 School Year 
c. Bright Schools Update 
d. October cafeteria count is up with a total of 2,409. This is +214 from prior year. 
 
There were no comments on the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/14 to 
10/31/14 or the Second Month Enrollments for the 2013-2014 School Year.   
 

3. STAFF REPORTS 
 

Mrs. Marla Stock, Loyalton High School Administrator, Cali Griffin, Loyalton High School Ag 
teacher and Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent reported on their site activities and 
responsibilities.  
WRIGHT:  Reported that as he drives through Downieville he witnesses the good behavior of 
the Downieville students and wishes them to be complimented. 

 
4. SPTA REPORTS 
 
 There were no reports. 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District  
Minutes of the School District Governing Board 
Regular Meeting  
November 12, 2014 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

3 

BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS  
 

DRISCOLL:  Read portions of the article, Here’s Why Steve Jobs Didn’t Let His Kids Use 
Ipads (and Why You Shouldn’t Either). 
MOORE:  Commented that the LHS Homecoming football game was hard loss, but a well-
played game. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
President Moore opened the meeting for public comment at 7:13 pm. 

 There was no public comment. 
 President Moore closed the meeting for public comment at 7:13 pm. 
 
H.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The following items were included on the consent calendar: 
 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held October 14, 2014 
2. Approval of the bill warrants for the month of October 2014 
3. Approval of Assignment of Darcy White, Hall/Playground Supervisor, Downieville School, 

1.5 hours daily, effective October 13, 2014 
4. Approval of Assignment, Loyalton Basketball Coaches, grades 7th and 8th 

 Tim Lysen, Grade 8th Boys Basketball Coach 
 Joel Armstrong, Grade 7th Boys Basketball Coach  

 DRISCOLL/HALL  
 5/0 
 
I.  ACTION ITEMS 
 
 1.  Unfinished Business and General Orders 

 
DRYDEN motioned to take 1415-078 and 1415-079 together and to approve BP 4115 as is 
and to approve AR 4115 with the stipulation that it is brought to the negotiation committee 
for discussion regarding teacher evaluations performed at least every other year.  WRIGHT 
seconded. 
5/0 

 
1415-078 Approval of Board Policy 4115, Evaluation/Supervision 

 
1415-079 Approval of Administrative Regulation 4115, Evaluation/Supervision 

 
 2.  New Business 

 
1415-080 Action on Real Property located at 605 School Street, Loyalton, CA,  
 APN #017-082-004 

WRIGHT motioned that we accept the real property sale agreement, with changes 
as recommended by counsel and as directed to the superintendent.  
The drop dead response date for the City of Loyalton will be November 28, 2014. 
Hall seconded. 

 5/0 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District  
Minutes of the School District Governing Board 
Regular Meeting  
November 12, 2014 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Minutes 

 

4 

1415-081 Approval of Job Description No 213.3, Custodian, revision 
  WRIGHT/HALL 
  5/0 
 

1415-082 Approval of Job Description No. 213.1, Plant Maintenance Worker, revision 
  WRIGHT/HALL 
  5/0 
 

1415-083 Nomination of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District representatives for the 
Student Attendance Review Board as follows:  
Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Chairman 
Mrs. Marla Stock, Loyalton High School Administrator 
Mrs. Marlene Mongolo, Sierra Pass Continuation School Administrator 
DRYDEN nominated the individuals above as school district representatives for 
SARB.  Hall seconded. 

 5/0 
 
BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS 

 

1415-084 Approval of Administrative Regulation 3543, Transportation Safety and 
Emergencies 

  WRIGHT/HALL 
  5/0 
   
J.  ADVANCED PLANNING 
 
     1.   The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on December 9, 2014, Sierra County Office of 

Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118, beginning with Closed Session, 
as needed, at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting immediately following the 6:00 pm 
meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education. 

 
      2.   Suggested Agenda items: 

 
a. Update on school site winter preparation, esp. the heating system in Downieville. 
b. First Interim 
c. Report on CIF 

    
K.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
  DRISCOLL/DRYDEN  
 ADJOURNED at 7:29 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________                                  ____________________________________                                        
Sharon Dryden, Clerk                       Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

 
 



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 11/01/2014 through 11/30/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

ACSA'S FOUNDATION FOR         EDUCATIONAL 

ADMINISTRATION

01-520011/10/201400079692 545.00 

AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-560011/10/201400079693 168.52 

AT&T 01-589011/10/201400079694 30.38 

01-5899 17.11 

01-5910 401.27 353.78 

CALIFORNIA ASSOC. FFA         ANGIE MILES, 

FINANCIAL SERVICE

01-430011/10/201400079695 402.50 

CHRISTIAN ENCOUNTER MINISTRIESINC. 01-951211/10/201400079696 200.00 

STATE CIF OFFICE 01-530011/10/201400079697 66.00 

CITY OF LOYALTON 01-553011/10/201400079698 3,434.32 

01-5899 3,643.89 209.57 

CONTINENTAL PRESS 01-430011/10/201400079699 172.08 

DELL MARKETING L.P. 01-430011/10/201400079700 613.44 

01-4400 1,044.63 

01-5899 7,849.25 6,191.18 

DIGITAL RIVER, INC.           ATTN: ACCOUNTS 

RECEIVABLE

01-430011/10/201400079701 311.76 

DOCUMENT TRACKING             SERVICES, LLC 01-589011/10/201400079702 1,170.00 

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT        

DEPARTMENT

01-350111/10/201400079703 120.15 

01-3502 501.10 380.95 

FARM SUPPLY 01-430011/10/201400079704 1,256.50 

AMY FILIPPINI 01-589911/10/201400079705 45.00 

GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-470011/10/201400079706 379.20 

MERRILL GRANT 01-520011/10/201400079707 384.16 

SUSAN GRESSEL 01-520011/10/201400079708 11.00 

HOLIDAY INN 01-520011/10/201400079709 142.99 

HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-559011/10/201400079710 1,615.60 

K 12 MANAGEMENT INC. 01-520011/10/201400079711 300.00 

01-5890 3,426.00 3,126.00 

MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-560011/10/201400079712 200.00 

LIBERTY UTILITIES 01-551011/10/201400079713 4,334.70 

01-5899 4,470.70 136.00 

ALEXANDER MACY 01-589011/10/201400079714 20.00 

JANET MCHENRY 01-520011/10/201400079715 11.00 

MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-470011/10/201400079716 884.04 

MIKE MOORE 76-957611/10/201400079717 565.40 

MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 01-589011/10/201400079718 7.50 

NSADA 01-530011/10/201400079719 35.00 

OFFICE DEPOT, INC 01-430011/10/201400079720 83.75 

OLIVER WORLDCLASS LABS 01-440011/10/201400079721 1,692.44 

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-551011/10/201400079722 2,080.31 

GINA PARKER 01-520011/10/201400079723 61.40 

PEARSON EDUCATION 01-430011/10/201400079724 2,731.02 

PESI 01-520011/10/201400079725 199.99 

PITNEY BOWES 01-430011/10/201400079726 65.78 

Page 1 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2014 10:17AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 11/01/2014 through 11/30/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

RESERVE ACCOUNT 01-589911/10/201400079727 250.00 

01-5900 1,000.00 750.00 

PLUMAS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 01-560011/10/201400079728 857.91 

01-5890 10,397.91 9,540.00 

PROMEVO, LLC 01-640011/10/201400079729 25,396.73 

ROTARY CLUB OF LOYALTON 01-520011/10/201400079730 162.00 

01-5300 192.00 30.00 

SCHOOL SPECIALTY 01-430011/10/201400079731 118.02 

SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH          DEPARTMENT 01-551011/10/201400079732 289.50 

SIERRA COUNTY TREASURER 01-586011/10/201400079733 3,658.21 

INTERMOUNTAIN DISPOSAL, INC. 01-552011/10/201400079734 461.50 

01-5899 470.50 9.00 

SIERRA HARDWARE 01-430011/10/201400079735 279.51 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430011/10/201400079736 422.53 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 01-589011/10/201400079737 24.00 

01-9130 524.00 500.00 

SIERRA TRANSPORTATION         COMPANY, 

LLC

01-510011/10/201400079738 19,353.18 

01-5890 22,547.59 3,194.41 

CHERRY SIMI/DOWNIEVILLE       ANTIQUE 

BOTTLE SHOW

01-951211/10/201400079739 200.00 

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMM. 01-430011/10/201400079740 364.95 

01-5899 465.17 100.22 

CDE, CASHIER'S OFFICE 13-470011/10/201400079741 75.40 

SUBURBAN PROPANE-1483 01-554011/10/201400079742 930.71 

JEANETTE STURZEN, CONSULTANT  

SUPERIOR REGION FFA

01-520011/10/201400079743 315.00 

TEACHER'S DISCOVERY 01-430011/10/201400079744 253.48 

Unpaid Sales Tax 16.10- 237.38 

TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-589011/10/201400079745 109.00 

THE LIGHTING GUYS 01-430011/10/201400079746 356.84 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-390111/10/201400079747 1,219.88 

01-3902 586.38 

01-9535 13,725.74 

76-9576 79,158.06 63,626.06 

U.S. BANK 01-410011/10/201400079748 234.61 

01-4300 2,449.34 

01-5200 1,080.00 

01-5890 90.96 

01-5899 20.40 

Unpaid Sales Tax 3.15- 3,872.16 

US FOODSERVICE, INC. 13-430011/10/201400079749 223.46 

13-4700 2,906.35 2,682.89 

VERIZON WIRELESS 01-591011/10/201400079750 113.74 

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC. 01-430011/10/201400079751 2,692.24 

01-5200 550.83 

01-9210 4,231.75 988.68 

WHITE'S SIERRA STATION, INC 01-435011/10/201400079752 125.25 

Page 2 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2014 10:17AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 11/01/2014 through 11/30/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

JASPER WHITLEY 01-589011/10/201400079753 20.00 

RAYMOND WOODWARD 01-589011/10/201400079754 20.00 

ALLEN WRIGHT 01-520011/10/201400079755 21.00 

194,254.46 Total Number of Checks 64 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 59 125,837.26 01

Cafeteria Fund 4 4,244.99 13

Warrant/Pass Though (payroll) 2 64,191.46 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 194,273.71 

19.25-

194,254.46 

64 

Page 3 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Dec  2 2014 10:17AM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH

2014-2015

Loyalton Loyalton Loyalton Downieville Downieville Sierra Long Term

Elementary Jr High Sr High Elementary Jr/Sr High Pass Cont ISP TOTAL

Ending 2013-2014 178 42 98 32 21 11 included in site # 382

1st Day 2014-2015 168 50 92 31 18 5 included in site # 364

2014 CALPADS 176 counted w/LHS 143 30 18 5 included in site # 372

Month

September 1 177 51 93 30 18 6 included in site # 375

October 2 179 52 94 29 18 5 included in site # 377

November 3 180 52 94 30 20 6 included in site # 382

December 4

January 5

February 6

March 7

April 8

May 9

June 10

2013-2014 S-PJUSD SDC Washoe Cnty

P-1 ADA 351.97 0 13.23

P-2 ADA 351.05 0 13.34

Annual ADA 353.91 0 13.37

 

doc:Board/Attendance Summary 2014-15

Enrollment difference from June 6, 2014, to
November 14, 2014: 0

Long Term ISP:
LES - 7
LHS -5

Prepared by sroberts 12/4/2014 Page 1











 

 1 

PO Box 955 

Loyalton, CA  96118 

(530) 993-1660  

Fax (530) 993-0828 
www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 

 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
 

Transportation Services Safety Plan 
(Complies with 39831.3 EC) 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District’s “Board of Education is committed to equal opportunity for all individuals in education. 

District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from discrimination based on race, color, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group 

identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or 

expression, or genetic information; the perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with one 

or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.”  BP0410 

http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org/


 

 2 

Preface 
 

CALIFORNIA EDUCATION CODE 
. 

. 

39831.3. (a) The county superintendent of schools, the superintendent of a school district, or the owner or 

operator of a private school that provides transportation to or from a school or school activity shall prepare 

a transportation safety plan containing procedures for school personnel to follow to ensure the safe 

transport of pupils. The plan shall be revised as required. The plan shall address all of the following: 

 

 Determining if pupils require escort pursuant to paragraph (3) of subdivision  

(c) of Section 22112 of the Vehicle Code. 

 

 Procedures for all pupils in pre-kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 8, inclusive, to 

follow as they board and exit the appropriate school bus at each pupil's school bus stop.    

   

 Boarding and exiting a school bus at a school or other trip destination. 

 

A current copy of a plan shall be retained by each school subject to the plan and made available upon 

request to an officer of the Department of the California Highway Patrol. 

  
 39831.5. All pupils in pre-kindergarten, kindergarten, and grades 1 to 12, inclusive, in public or private 

school who are transported in a school bus or school pupil activity bus shall receive instruction in school 

bus emergency procedures and passenger safety. The county superintendent of schools, superintendent of 

the school district, or owner/operator of a private school, as applicable, shall ensure that the instruction is 

provided as follows: 

 

 At least once in each school year, all pupils in pre-kindergarten, kindergarten, and 

grades 1 to 8, inclusive, who receive home-to-school transportation, shall receive safety 

instruction that includes, but is not limited to, proper loading and unloading procedures, 

including escorting by the driver, how to safely cross the street, highway, or private 

road, instruction on the use of passenger restraint systems, proper passenger conduct, 

bus evacuation, and location of emergency equipment.  

 

Instruction also may include responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency exit. As part of 

the instruction, pupils shall evacuate the school bus through emergency exit doors. 

 

Instruction on the use of passenger restraint systems, when a passenger restraint system is installed, shall 

include, but not be limited to all of the following: 

 

 Proper fastening and release of the passenger restraint system. 

 Acceptable placement of passenger restraint systems on pupils. 

 Times at which the passenger restraint systems should be fastened and released. 

 Acceptable placement of the passenger restraint systems when not in use. 



 

 3 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

 
Transportation Safety Plan Requirements 
 

 

The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District is required to create and maintain a transportation safety 

plan that includes: 

 

 Procedures for students to board and exit the school bus safely 

 

 Clarifies that the safety plan shall not require the use of an on-board monitor on the 

school bus in addition to the driver. 

 

 Provisions for the plan to be retained by the district, and made available upon the request 

of an officer of the California Highway Patrol (CHP). 

 

 Authorizes a school bus driver to stop the bus to load or unload pupils without activating 

the flashing red signal lights and stop signal arm under specified conditions, and after 

consultation with CHP. 

 

This plan must be maintained at each school site and be available for inspection by the CHP upon 

request. 

 
Transportation Safety Plan 

 
1. Only authorized bus riders are permitted to ride the bus and they will be required to get on and off 

at their designated stop or other trip designation. An authorized bus rider who desires to get off the 

bus at a stop other than the normal stop is required to have a note signed by his or her parent. 

Permission to get off at a different stop will only be granted if no change of bus is involved. 

Children who are not authorized bus riders will not be permitted to ride the bus even to accompany 

an authorized rider to or from school unless they receive permission from the superintendent or 

school site administrator in advance. 

 

2. Bus riders are encouraged to arrive at their bus stops no earlier than five minutes before the 

scheduled time of pick-up. Children who arrive at their bus stops too early and get bored while 

waiting may cause most behavior problems. Horseplay is not permitted at the bus stop. 

 

3. Students are to wait in line completely off the paved surface of roadway for the bus. Students are 

to stand twelve (12) feet back from the bus as it pulls toward the curb and not move toward the 

school bus until it comes to a complete stop and opens its doors. 

 

a. Bus riders may not cross the street on which the designated bus stop is located but 

must wait in line on the opposite side of the road until the school bus driver 

personally escorts them across  

 



 

 4 

4. The bus drivers will not depart pick up stops before the scheduled time. Parents can set their clocks 

by accessing the internet (www.time.gov). 

 

5. The bus driver will make every effort to arrive at the bus stop at the scheduled time for pick up. If 

the bus arrives early, the driver will wait until the scheduled time before departing. In order to 

remain on schedule, the driver cannot wait at any stop beyond the scheduled pick up time. Take 

home times are considered more flexible than pick up times, and it is possible that some children 

will be delivered to their stops earlier than scheduled. This could occur when a driver bypasses 

bus stops of absent children. 

 

6. The bus driver has the authority to separate students and to assign students to specific seats as 

deemed necessary. 

 

7. Bus drivers are required by law to load and discharge passengers only at authorized stops as listed 

on scheduled home-to-school or school-to-home routes or other trip destinations. If a student is 

hesitant or reluctant to get off the bus at his or her stop, the student will not be forced to get off. 

The student will either be returned to school or taken to the district office. Please do not ask or 

expect a driver to stop at a location other than your child's assigned bus stop.  
 

8. Many special education students must be met by responsible adults. If no one is available to meet 

the child, the bus driver completes the route and returns to the stop, takes the child back to school, 

or takes the child to the district office or Child Protective Services. 

 

9. Students needing to cross the street on which the bus is stopped, shall be provided escort service 

at those locations where traffic is not controlled by a traffic officer or an official traffic control 

signal. 

 

a. The crossing light system (Ambers and Reds) shall be activated, as required, when 

the bus is stopped for the purpose of loading and unloading students if the vehicle 

is parked on a highway or private road, unless under the direction of a traffic officer. 

The lights DO NOT allow students to cross the roadway or highway unless the 

driver has exited the schoolbus and given the student direction that it is safe to cross. 

Students are to remain on the roadside until the driver gives the direction that it is 

safe to cross. Students are never to cross the roadway or highway behind the bus 

unless crossing at an official traffic controlled signal. 

 

b. Each student being escorted across the street is required to cross under authority of 

the driver after unloading from the bus and crossing in front of the bus.  

 

10. In order to ensure the continued high level of safety provided to our pupils and expected by the 

public. Transportation will continue to educate school bus drivers, pupils and the public about the 

laws and dangers associated with loading and unloading of students. 

 

11. Each student on a school bus must behave in a satisfactory manner in order for the driver to remain 

alert to the many hazards of driving. The safety of all students is of primary importance; a student 

who behaves in an unsatisfactory manner may be denied transportation. Student's conduct at school 



 

 5 

bus loading zones and school bus stops must be satisfactory to allow for the safe loading and 

unloading at these locations. Parent reinforcement of these regulations will help considerably in 

maintaining a high level of safety and a low level of disciplinary problems. Parents/Guardians may 

be responsible for any damage to vehicles or property caused directly by their students. 

 

BUS RIDERS ARE REQUIRED TO:  
1. Follow the instructions and directions of the bus driver at all times 

2. Be at their designated bus stop on time and stand in a safe place at the stop to wait quietly for the bus  (The bus will not 

wait for students at any stop) 

3. Enter the bus in an orderly manner and go directly to their seats 

4. Sit in their seat with their backs against the seat, facing forward, backpacks on laps, fasten any passenger restraints systems, 

and keeping the isle and emergency exit of the bus clear of all obstacles.  The bus driver may assign designated seats to 

the students 

5. Report any vandalism or damage to the bus to the bus driver 

6. Report lost or found articles to the bus driver 

7. Remain seated at all times when the bus is in motion 

8. Be courteous to everyone 

9. Walk to and from bus stops in an orderly manner without damaging property, disturbing the peace, or endangering 

themselves or others 

10. When waiting to board the bus, the student stays 12 feet away from the bus until it comes to a complete stop and the door 

opens to permit entry 

11. Never cross the street on which a bus is stopped unless escorted by the bus driver. Students must cross in front of the bus 

and between it and the driver 

12. Promptly leave the bus stop upon exiting the bus  

13. Keep the bus and the area around the bus stop clean 

14. Items left or lost on the bus are not the responsibility of the Driver, School or the District 

 

BUS RIDERS MAY NOT:  
1. Distract the bus driver 

2. Create loud noise 

3. Deface or tamper with the bus or the property of others; Parents must pay for damage caused by vandalism 

4. Put any part of their body or any item out of the window  

5. Use language or gestures that others might find offensive or rude 

6. Behave in any way which is abusive, illegal or dangerous  

7. Eat, drink, chew gum, use tobacco products, litter, spit, throw or toss any item inside of or out of the bus 

8. Bring animals or other pets on the bus, except licensed guide dogs 

9. Open or use the emergency exits except in an emergency 

10. Use cellular telephones or similar devices that disrupts the safe operation of the school bus (the bus driver may direct the 

student to no longer use the device on the bus) 

 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE NOT ALLOWED ON A SCHOOL BUS AT 

ANYTIME: 
 Animals, except for those allowed by law, insects, plants, skateboards, scooters, baseball bats, basketballs, toys of any 

kind, , or any object or substance which might be dangerous or illegal 

 

BUS DRIVERS MAY ISSUE CITATIONS FOR FAILURE TO ABIDE BY THESE 

RULES: 
 A student’s bus riding privilege may be suspended for serious offences or multiple citations 

 Suspensions will only take place after consultations with the principal, driver, and parent 

 



 

 6 

School Activity Trip Safety Instructions 
 

Before departing on a school activity trip, all students riding on a school bus or student activity bus shall 

receive safety instruction which includes, but is not limited to:  (Education Code 39831.5) 

 Location of emergency exits 

 Location and use of emergency equipment 

 May include responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency exit 

 May include the use of the passenger restraint system (lap/shoulder belt) 

 

The driver shall point out the location and functions of the fire extinguisher, first aid kit, and all exit 

locations prior to departing on the field trip and explain the school bus rules. 

 

During darkness, the driver shall ensure that the interior lighting is sufficient for passengers to enter and 

exit safely and whenever otherwise deemed necessary. 

 

Safe Bus Operations 

 

California mandates the Governing Board of any district that provides student transportation to adopt 

procedures that limit bus operation when atmospheric conditions reduce visibility, as described below, 

and that give drivers of student activity buses discretionary authority to discontinue operation when it is 

unsafe. 

 

School bus operations shall be limited when atmospheric conditions reduce visibility on the roadway to 

200 feet or less during regular home-to-school transportation service.  Bus drivers for school activity trips 

shall have the authority to discontinue bus operation whenever they determine that it is unsafe to continue 

operation because of reduced visibility.  (Vehicle Code 34501.6) 

 

Bus Evacuations & Safety Instruction 
 

All pupils in pre-kindergarten to grade 8, inclusive, who receive home-to-school transportation shall 

receive safety instruction that includes, but is not limited to proper loading and unloading procedures, 

including escorting by the driver, how to safely cross the street, highway, or private road, instruction on 

the use of passenger restraint systems, proper passenger conduct, bus evacuation, location of emergency 

equipment and may include responsibilities of passengers seated next to an emergency exit. 

 

As part of the instruction, pupils shall evacuate the schoolbus through emergency exit doors. 

 

In an emergency it is up to the students and driver to stay calm. Students must listen to the bus driver and 

follow instructions carefully. 

 

If the students have to evacuate the bus, they must wait and  follow the driver’s instructions.  Students 

must  not crowd the aisle, but movetoward the exit.  Secure loose clothing so it won’t be caught on door 

or any other part of the bus.   Leave ALL belongings on the bus.  Students should duck their head and 

bend their knees if they must jump form an emergency exit.  Everyone is to move to a safe location 100 

ft. from the bus. 

 



 

 7 

This transportation safety plan will be made readily available to all school district personnel who drive 

school district vehicles and could find themselves in a situation where they would be transporting a student 

as a passenger. If there are any questions about the information contained in this document, please call the 

District Office at (530) 993-1660, ext. 38, 40, 42, or 43.  

 

Operation Hours: 7:00 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. Monday - Friday 

 

In case of emergency, collision, or breakdown call appropriate personnel using the number listed above. 

Have location, load size, and problem available  

 

 Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

o Dr. Grant, Superintendent   (530) 993-1660 ext. 37 

 (530) 771-7926 cell 

o Marla Stock, LHS Principal  (530) 993-4454 x 203 

 

 Plumas Unified Transportation Department 

o Ken Pierson, Transportation Director (530) 283-6545 ext. 5507 

o Kyle Bakker, Lead Mechanic  (530) 283-6545 ext. 5508 

 

 Sierra Transportation (Downieville Schools) 

o Doug Peterman, President   (530) 283-3230 

 

 Sierra County Sheriff    (530) 289-3700 

 Plumas County Sheriff    (530) 832-4242 

 CHP Quincy     (530) 283-1100 

 CHP Susanville     (530) 257-9605 

  

In case of emergency, (non-collision/breakdown) – Loyalton Schools 

 Plumas Unified Transportation Department 

o Kyle Bakker, Lead Mechanic  (530) 283-6545 ext. 5508 

 

In case of emergency, (non-collision/breakdown) – Downieville Schools 

 Sierra Transportation 

o Doug Peterman, President   (530) 283-3230 

 

Other Contact Numbers 

 USFS Sierraville     (530) 994-3401 

 CAL TRANS Sierraville    (530) 994-3410 

 CAL TRANS Beckwouth    (530) 832-4911 

 Road Information     (800) 427-7623 

 Cresent Tow     (530) 832-0323, 284-6231 C#375-7810 

 

Find additional transportation information at the transportation web site 

“www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org” 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
2014-2015 First Interim  

Presented December 9, 2014 
 
Student Attendance/Enrollment 

 
Attendance: 

2010/11 
P2 

2011/12 
P2 

2012/13 
P2 

2013/14 
P2 

2014/15 
Proj 

2015/16 
Proj 

2016/17 
Proj 

Downieville Elementary 24.97 28.39 26.89 29.17 29.10 27.16 21.34 
Downieville Jr. High  5.91 5.03 6.72 5.74 6.16 7.04 10.56 
Downieville Sr. High 20.85 19.50 17.03 13.86 10.45 9.50 11.40 
Loyalton Elementary 176.05 171.30 156.91 165.24 168.96 161.28 165.12 
Loyalton Middle (LHS 7-8) 51.89 49.71 48.52 42.58 47.00 58.28 48.88 
Loyalton High 112.82 107.73 103.16 90.97 87.42 91.18 92.12 
Sierra Pass – Continuation 1.34 1.15 4.66 3.49 3.21 1.28 1.28 
District Total 393.83 382.81 363.89 351.05 352.30 355.72 350.70 

        

Enrollment: CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS 

District Total 424 392 373 380 372 375 370 

 

REVENUE 
  
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
This is the second year the State is funding schools using the LCFF.  The funding basis with 
LCFF shifts from a primarily ADA/NSS driven model to one that places emphasis on the student 
population/demographics as was as ADA.  LCFF is funded by local property taxes, Education 
Protection Account (EPA) and the State.  The EPA ¼ additional sales tax expires at the end of 
2016 and the increase to personal income tax for high income earners expires at the end of 
2018.  Full implementation of LCFF is anticipated in 2020-21.   Although the revenue provides 
local control, the funds do have restrictions/accountability.  Funds received must support the 
District’s Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), provide the same level of cost for home-to-
school transportation (up to 2012-13 State allocation) and ROP, and meet “maintenance of 
effort” for unduplicated students.  Projected LCFF sources decreased by $36,080 since the 
budget adoption. 
 
Other State Revenue 
Other State Revenue decreased by $52,368 since the budget adoption for the following 
reasons: 
           Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable)  Comment 
 Mandated Costs Reimbursement $  9,922    increase of award 

 Lottery     $  2,222    increase per ADA 

 Common Core     ($75,800)   funds received in 2013/14 

 Agriculture Incentive    $11,288    State authorized after budget  

was adopted 

Federal Revenue 
Federal Revenue decrease by $431,137 since the budget adoption for the following reasons:  
           Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) Comment 
 Forest Reserve Funds   ($425,000)   one year reauthorization 

 NCLB, Title I     $        820    increase of award 

 NCLB, Title II    ($    7,272)    mostly carry over funds 

 Carl Perkins Grant    $        315    increase of award 

 



    

SPJUSD 1st Interim Narrative 2014-2015 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Local Revenue 
Local Revenue is projected to increase $4,445 since the budget adoption for the following 
reasons:  
 
           Favorable         

Funding Description             (Unfavorable) 

 Home-to-School Pupil Fees  $ 3,000     

 Microsoft Tech Settlement  $ 1,445  
 
The chart below compares restricted & unrestricted revenue from the 2012-2013 Actual, 2013-
2014 Unaudited Actuals, 2014-15 Adopted Budget and First Interim.   
 

Description 2012-2013  
Actuals 

2013-2014 
Unaudited 

Actuals 

2014-2015 
Budget 

 

2014-2015 
First  

Interim 

Favorable  
(Unfavorable) 

Budget vs.  
First Interim 

LCFF $2,997,032 $3,981,735 $4,108,347 $4,072,267 ($36,080) 

Federal  607,441 569,490 552,813 121,676 (431,137) 

Other State 1,126,226 166,326 354,763 302,395 (52,368) 

Other Local 226,560 224,078 229,191 233,636 4,445 

Pliocene Sale  467,749    

from State Facility   0.00 269,468 269,468 

Total $4,957,259 $5,409,378 $5,245,114 $4,999,442 ($245,672) 

  
 
 

 
 
 
EXPENDITURES 
 
General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures decreased by $62,321 (General Fund, Unrestricted/Restricted, Page 1, B) from 
the Board Approved Operating Budget. 

$4,072,267 ; 82%

$121,676 ; 2%

$302,395 ; 6%

$233,636 ; 5% $269,468 ; 5%

Total Resources $4,999,442

LCFF

Federal

Other State

Other Local

T/I fr State Facility



    

SPJUSD 1st Interim Narrative 2014-2015 
Page 3 of 4 

 
This chart below compares restricted & unrestricted expenditures from the 2012-2013 Actual, 
2013-2014 Unaudited Actuals, 2014-15 Adopted Budget and First Interim.   
 
 
 

Description 2012-2013  
Actuals 

2013-2014 
Unaudited 

Actuals 

2014-2015 
Budget 

 

2014-2015 
First  

Interim 

Favorable  
(Unfavorable) 

Budget vs.  
First Interim 

Certificated $1,719,917 $1,706,737 $1,765,536 $1,730,944 $34,592 

Classified 722,909 666,389 701,387 716,842 (15,455) 

Benefits 1,144,014 1,073,568 1,146,838 1,102,860 43,978 

Books & Supplies 184,336 171,609 225,829 257,351 (31,522) 

Services & Operating 1,353,514 1,332,433 950,406 964,829 (14,423) 

Capital Outlay 47,280 49,763 267,953 305,194 (37,241) 

Other Outgo 28,762 588 80,000 88,000 (8,000) 

Transfer to Cafeteria 58,497 60,851 64,218 64,218 0.00 

Transfer to Capital Outlay 5,970 87,600 81,350 115,600 ($34,250) 

Transfer to State Facility 770,600     

Total $6,,068,799 $5,149,538 5,283,517 5,345,838 (62,321) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Other Financing Sources/Uses 

A transfer-in from the State Facility Fund to the Operating Fund to reimburse for prior years 
expenditures for the Loyalton High Reroof Hardship Project in the amount of $269,468.  The   
Cafeteria Enterprise fund is expected to encroach $64,218 on the General Fund.   

1,730,944; 32%

716,842; 13%

1,102,860; 21%

257,351; 5%

964,829; 18%

305,194; 6%
88,000; 2%

64,218; 1%

115,600; 2%

Total Expenditures $5,345,838

Certificated

Classified

Benefits

Books & Supplies

Services & Operating

Capital Outlay

Washoe Students

to Cafeteria

to Special Reserve



    

SPJUSD 1st Interim Narrative 2014-2015 
Page 4 of 4 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2012-13 actuals ($1,078,539) 

2013-14 unaudited actuals $29,776  

2014-15 projected (346,396) 

2015-16 projected (394,162) 

2016-17 projected (306,815) 

 
Ending Fund Balance 
2012-13 $2,496,090 actual 
2013-14 $2,755,931 unaudited actuals 
2014-15 $2,409,535 projected 
2015-16 $2,015,373 projected 
2016-17 $1,708,558 projected 
 
Other Funds 
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund:     Encroachment $64,218 
County School Facilities Fund:  Transfer out to General Fund $269,468 
Foundation, Bechen:       Scholarships 2 @ $1,500, EFB $54,217 
      Donation of 2,000 shares of AT&T; $71,000 
Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay     $70,000 Downieville exterior paint project 
      $260,000 Loyalton High parking lot project 
      $25,000 Loyalton Elementary asphalt repair/upgrade 
          (Playground and between SpEd & LES areas)   

$75,000 budgeted for facility projects, FY 15/16 & 16/17 

Other Comments 
 Non-Prop 20 Lottery rate per ADA estimate is $128.00 and Prop 20 is $34 per ADA. 

 
 A positive cash flow for fiscal year 2014-2015 and 2015-2016 with an ending cash 

balance of $2,351,937 and $1,764,166, respectively. 
 

 Reserve requirement is met for all three years. Positive Certification. 
 

 S-PTA started negotiations for fiscal year 2015-2016 November 2014.   
 

 A 5% Health Care premium increase is included in the multiyear budget for certificated 
staff. 

   
 Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate for 2015-16 is 6.78%. 

 
 No Child Left Behind MOE is projected to be met, an expenditure of $13,045 per ADA. 

 
 Eliminated Secure Rural Schools, aka Forest Receipts, all fiscal years. 

 
Personnel    FTE 
Certificated  24.60 
Administration    1.85 
Classified Mgmt.   1.00 
Classified  22.10 
Confidential    2.00  










































































































































































	01_12_09_14_SPJUSD_AGENDA.pdf
	01CIF.pdf
	02_Expenditures_SPJUSD.pdf
	03_11_12_14_SPJUSD_MINUTES.pdf
	04_SPJUSD Nov2014 Checks.pdf
	05_Copy of Board Summary Enrollments 2014-15.pdf
	06_ferrellgas.pdf
	06_Transportation Safety Plan_Draft.pdf
	07_SPJUSD 1st Interim Narrative 2014-2015.pdf
	08_SPJUSD 1st Interim REPORT 2014-2015.pdf

